
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Monica Bell, Democratic Services (01254) 380114 
Email:  monica.bell@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Friday, 10th February 2017 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Licensing Sub Committee 
 
Monday, 6 March 2017 at 9.30 am, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Melissa Fisher 
 
Councillors Stewart Eaves and Paul Thompson 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

2.   Minutes of the Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the last meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 28th 
September 2016 for approval as a correct record. 

 Recommended - That the Minutes be received and approved as a  
correct record. 

 

3.   Licensing Hearing Procedure  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
To advise the Sub-Committee of the Council’s Hearing Procedure to be used in relation 
to hearings required under the Licensing Act 2003.  The Procedure is attached. 

Recommended - That the Procedure be noted. 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

4.   Licensing Act 2003 Determination Hearing  -  The Walmsley Arms, 26 Queen Street, 
Great Harwood  (Pages 13 - 84) 
 
To advise the Licensing Sub-Committee of an application from a resident for the review 
of a Premises Licence and a determination required under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
The premises for which the review is sought is the Walmsley Arms, 26 Queen Street, 
Great Harwood. 

Recommended - That the Licensing Sub-Committee consider the 
application to review the premises licence for the 
Walmsley Arms, 26 Queen Street, Great Harwood 
made by the resident, and any submissions made by 
the premises licence holder. 

 

 
 



 

 
91 

 
LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 

 

 
Wednesday, 28th September, 2016 

 
Present:  Councillor Mohammad Ayub (in the Chair), Councillors Joyce Plummer 

and Paul Thompson 
 

In Attendance: Police Sergeant Jason Middleton, Lancashire Constabulary (East Division) 

  

 
185 Apologies for Absence 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

186 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

187 Minutes of Meetings 
 
The Minutes of the meetings of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 21st and 29th April 
2016 were submitted for approval as correct records. 

Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as correct 
records. 

 
188 Licensing Hearing Procedure 

 
The Licensing Sub-Committee was advised of the Council’s Conduct of Hearings 
Procedure which was to be used in relation to hearings required under the Licensing Act 
2003.  The Procedure was attached as Appendix H to the undermentioned application. 

Resolved - That the Procedure be noted. 
 

189 Licensing Act 2003 Determination Hearing  -  EU General Traders Ltd., 38 Whalley 
Road, Accrington 
 
In accordance with the Hyndburn Borough Council Policy on the Conduct of Hearings and 
the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, the Licensing Sub-Committee was 
advised of the details of two simultaneous applications made under the Licensing Act 2003.  
The applications were as follows:- 
 
(i) To transfer the premise licence pursuant to Section 42, Licensing Act 2003 to EU 

General Traders Ltd., 38 Whalley Road, Accrington  -  premises known as Eklep 
Euro.  
 

(ii) To vary the premises licence relating to 38 Whalley Road, Accrington to specify 
another individual as designated premises supervisor pursuant to Section 37, 
Licensing Act 2003 

 
A report relating to the applications was submitted and the following documents were 
attached to the report:- 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
92 

Appendix A - Application to Transfer Premise Licence pursuant to  
   Section 42, Licensing Act 2003 
 
   Application to Vary a Premises Licence to Specify an Individual  
   as Designated Premises Supervisor pursuant to Section 37,  
   Licensing Act 2003 
 
Appendix B - Representation and Additional Material from the Responsible  
   Authority (Lancashire Constabulary – East Division) 
 
Appendix C - Email Sent by Donald Race & Newton, Solicitors 
 
Appendix D - Application Submitted by Mr. Mahmood Mudassar 
 
Appendix E - Letters Sent by Licensing Manager to Messrs. Azhar Iqbal,  
   Mahmood Mudassar and Asif Jalil 
 
Appendix F - Email Exchange Between Police Sergeant Middleton and a  
   Council Officer 
 
Appendix G - Copy of Existing Licence 
 
Appendix H - Copy of the Licensing Authorities ‘Conduct of Hearings  
   Procedure’ 
 
Appendix I - Copy of Additional Evidence / Information Received from  
   Police Sergeant Middleton 
 
The representation and additional material (Appendix B) had been submitted due to the 
Chief Officer of Police being satisfied that the exceptional circumstances of the case were 
such that granting the application(s) would undermine the Crime Prevention Licensing 
Objective. 
 
Police Sergeant Middleton gave evidence in relation to the investigation carried out by the 
Police / Licensing Authority due to the uncertainty of who Messrs. Mahmood Mudassar and 
Azhar Iqbal actually were.  The Police were unhappy with the uncertainty of who the holder 
of the premise licence was and who was authorising the sales of alcohol.   
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee was requested to determine whether to grant or refuse the 
two applications, whilst bearing in mind the following facts:- 
 
(a) The objections and additional information submitted by Lancashire  

Constabulary and the evidence given by Police Sergeant Middleton. 
 
(b) The premises having failed a test purchase operation run by the Police and 

Lancashire County Council Trading Standards. 
 
(c) The failure of the Designated Premises Supervisor (Mr. Asif Jalil) to attend a 

meeting, without explanation, or to respond to phone calls / messages about the test 
purchase failure. 

 
(d) The Solicitor’s email suggesting that Mr. Azhar Iqbal had not submitted a previous 

application to transfer the premises licence to his name. 
 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
93 

(e) The abandonment of an application from Mr. Mahmood Mudassar to transfer the 
premises licence into his name, due to the uncertainty of who Messrs. Mudassar 
and Azhar Iqbal actually were. 

 
(f) In connection with a Police visit to an address in Burnley to speak to Mr. Azhar 

Iqbal, confirmation from Mr. Iqbal at that time that he had no involvement in the 
premises and had no idea why his name and address had been associated with the 
premises.  The Mr. Azhar Iqbal at the Burnley address was not the male who had 
attended a meeting at Accrington Police Station on 16th June 2016 in regard to test 
purchase failure. 

 
(h) At no time had Licensing Officers met the contact person for EU General Traders 

Ltd (Mr. Awais Pervez).  
 
Prior to a formal decision being made, the Licensing Sub-Committee sought legal advice on 
the validity of the applications. 
 
Decision of the Sub-Committee:- 

Resolved (1) That it be noted that in regard to the validity of the 
applications, the evidence presented indicated that the 
person named as the proposed transferor of the 
premises licence had never applied for the premises 
licence in question to be transferred to his name;  

 (2) That it be noted that the previous purported transfer of 
the licence to Mr. Azhar Iqbal was considered to be 
invalid as he did not satisfy the statutory criteria 
specified in Sections 42 and 16(1) of the Licensing Act 
2003, namely that he was a person who carried on or 
proposed to carry on a business that involved 
licensable activities; 

 (3) That as the application under consideration had not 
been accompanied by the current premises licence as 
required by Section 42 (4) or a satisfactory explanation 
as to why it could not be obtained, the application to 
transfer the premise licence be rejected under Section 
44 of the Licensing Act 2003 as none of the conditions 
specified in Section 44 (3) of the Act applied to the 
application;   

 (4) That the application to vary the premises licence to 
specify an individual as designated premises supervisor 
be rejected as the applicant was not the holder of the 
relevant premises licence;  and,  

 (5) That in the light of the legal position that the Sub-
Committee was not specifically required to address the 
submission of Lancashire Constabulary, it be noted that 
the Sub-Committee shared the Constabulary’s concern 
about the manner in which the premises had been 
operated and would have upheld the objection.    

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
94 

  The reasons for the decision were outlined at the 
meeting and set out in the decision notice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 6



 - 1 - 

 
 
 
 

COPY OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY’S                                     
‘CONDUCT OF HEARINGS PROCEDURES’ 

 
HYNDBURN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 
THE CONDUCT OF HEARINGS 

 
1. Application 

1.1 All hearings subject to the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings Regulations) 2005 will be held 
in accordance with this procedure.  Schedule 1 details the hearings which are subject 
to this procedure. 

 
2. Time of Hearing  

2.1 Hearings will commence within the times illustrated in Column 2 of Schedule 1, and 
where the hearing is scheduled to take place on more than one day, it will take place 
on consecutive working days. 

 
2.2 Hearings will normally commence at 1.00 pm on the day of the hearing, but hearings 

may take place at other times at the discretion of the Chair of the Committee or Sub-
Committee appointed to hear the matter. 

 
3. Members of the Committee or Sub-Committee 

3.1 Where the full Licensing Committee sit to hear an application, the full Committee will 
sit, excluding a member who: 

a) has sat on a Planning Committee hearing in respect of the premises 
subject to, or concerned in the Licensing Act 2003 application and/or 

b) has a personal and prejudicial interest in the application and / or 
c) has become an interested party by representing the applicant or any 

interested party prior to the hearing. 
 

3.2 Where a Sub-Committee sit to hear an application, it will consist of 3 members of the 
full Committee and will exclude a member who: 

a) has sat on a Planning Committee hearing in respect of the premises 
subject to, or concerned in the Licensing Act 2003 application and/or 

b) has a personal and prejudicial interest in the application 
c) has become an interested party by representing the applicant or any 

interested party prior to the hearing. 
 

3.3 Members will act in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003. They will have received 
training under the Act and will also act in accordance with the relevant paragraphs of 
the Local Authority Co-coordinators of Regulatory Services Guidance on the Role of 
Elected Members in Relation to Licensing Committee Hearings under the Licensing 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3.



 - 2 - 

Act 2003, the Hyndburn Borough Council Member codes of conduct and the 
requirements of the Standards Board for England and Wales. 

 
4. Opening of a Hearing and Identifying Parties to the Hearing 

4.1 The Chair of the Committee or Sub-Committee will introduce the members of the 
Committee or Sub-Committee and will outline the brief purpose of the hearing, person 
or premises to which the hearing relates, and the legal authority under which the 
determination will be made. 

4.2 All parties to a hearing will have been given a Notice of Hearing and Information to 
accompany a Notice of Hearing, prior to the hearing. The party to the hearing receiving 
a Notice of Hearing is obliged to return a response notice stating whether: 

a) they intend to attend or be represented at the hearing 
b) they consider a hearing to be unnecessary 
c) they request permission for other persons (other than a representative) to appear 

at the hearing, and the points upon which that person may be able to give 
information or assistance. 

 
4.3 The Clerk to the Committee or Sub-Committee will identify in turn, each party to the 

hearing who is present, and in relation to that party, whether they: 
a) are represented, and if so, who by 
b) have given notice that they consider a hearing unnecessary 
c) have given notice that they wish to withdraw any representation   

 they have made 
d) have given written representations which are before the hearing 
e) have given notice that they seek permission to call any other persons (other than 

a representative) to appear at the hearing, and the points upon which that person 
may be able to give evidence on or assistance 

 
4.4 The Chair of the Committee or Sub- Committee will then, in turn, ask each party to the 

hearing who is present whether: 
a) they wish to verbally withdraw any representations they have made 
b) they intend to introduce any documentary or other information that they have not 

produced in advance of the hearing 
  
4.5 Where a party does intend to introduce any documentary or other information that they 

have not produced in advance of the hearing, the Chair of the Committee or Sub-
Committee will ask all other parties whether they consent to that evidence or 
information being introduced. If any party does object, that documentary or other 
information must not be introduced. 

 
4.6 The Committee or Sub-Committee will then consider any requests made to call other 

persons under Paragraph 4.3(e) above, and shall not unreasonably withhold any such 
permission, having ensured that Paragraph 4.5 above is not undermined by such 
persons.   

 
4.7 The Clerk to the Committee or Sub-Committee will identify in turn, each party to the 

hearing who is not present at the hearing and in relation to that party will clarify: 
a) whether there is evidence that they were given Notice of the Hearing  
b) whether that party has given notice that they intend to attend or be represented 
c) whether that party has given notice that they consider a hearing to be 

unnecessary 
d) whether that party has given notice that they wish to withdraw their 

representation 
 
4.8 Where a party has given notice that they do not intend to attend or be represented, the 

Committee or Sub- Committee will state whether they intend to proceed in the absence 
of that party.  

      

Page 8



 - 3 - 

4.9 Where a party has not given such notice has failed to attend or be represented, the 
Committee or Sub-Committee will then decide whether it is necessary in the public 
interest to adjourn the hearing to a specified date or hold the hearing in the party’s 
absence. The Committee or Sub-Committee may invite representations from parties 
present on this issue before making their decision. 

 
4.10 The Committee or Sub-Committee, should it decide to proceed must subsequently 

consider the application, representation or notice made by a party who does not 
attend, attaching the appropriate weight of evidence to it. 

 
5. Hearings to be Held in Public 

5.1 The hearing shall take place in public although a member of the public, unless a party 
to the hearing a representative of a party, or a person mentioned under Paragraph 
4.3(e) above, shall not be entitled to address the hearing. 

 
5.2 The Chair of the Committee or Sub-Committee will invite any applications from parties 

present in relation to whether it is in the public interest to exclude the public from all or 
part of a hearing. 

 
5.3 Where there are such representations, they will be heard in public and following these, 

the Committee or Sub-Committee will decide whether the public interest in excluding 
the public outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the hearing taking 
place in public.  

 
5.4 Where there are no representations under Paragraph 5.3, then subject to Paragraph 

7.8, the whole of the hearing will take place in public. Where there are representations, 
the Committee or Sub-Committee decision and reasons for it will be given in public, 
and the Committee or Sub-Committee will also state whether any party or any persons 
assisting or representing a party are to be treated as a member of the public for this 
purpose. 

 
6. Commencement of the Hearing 

6.1 The Chair will explain the procedures that it will follow at the hearing. In particular the 
Chair will clarify that: 

a) the hearing will take the form of a discussion led by the Committee or Sub-
Committee and cross-examination will not be permitted unless the Committee or 
Sub-Committee considers that cross examination is required for it to consider the 
representations, application or notice as the case may require. 

b) members of the Committee or Sub-Committee may ask a question of any party 
or other person appearing at the hearing. 

c) members of the Committee or Sub-Committee may take into account 
documentary or other information produced to the authority before the hearing in 
support of their application, representation or notice. These have been provided 
to the Committee or Sub-Committee members by the Licensing Manager and 
need not be repeated at the hearing. 

d) members of the Committee or Sub-Committee may take into account any new 
documentary or other information produced to the authority at the hearing with 
the consent of all other parties (if any) and need not be repeated verbally at the 
hearing. 

e) parties will be allocated a maximum equal period to exercise their rights. The 
Chair will clarify what that time will be and when calculating that time will take 
account of the number of other persons who have been given permission to 
speak under Paragraph 4.3(e) above. 

f) parties will be allowed to clarify points upon which they wish to support their 
application. 

g) parties may seek permission to question any other party subject to Paragraph a) 
above. 

h) parties may seek permission to address the Committee or Sub-Committee. 

Page 9



 - 4 - 

 
 
 
 

7. Procedure 

7.1 The Licensing Manager (or his representative) will not be a party to the hearing. The 
Manager will outline the facts of the application and relevant representations received 
from parties. 

 
7.2 The Licensing Manager will then outline the legislation under which a determination is 

required. 
 
7.3 The Licensing Manager will outline: 

a) Relevant parts of the Act 
b) Relevant subordinate legislation 
c) Relevant sections from the statutory guidance made under Section 182 of the 

Act. 
d) Relevant paragraphs of the Statement of Licensing Policy made under Section 5 

of the Act. 
e) The time limit in which the Committee or Sub-Committee must make a 

determination under the law. 
 

7.4 The Licensing Manager or Licensing Authority Solicitor will advise the Committee or 
Sub-Committee but will not make recommendations or be part of the determination 
process. They will not retire with the Committee or Sub-Committee members for the 
purposes of a determination. The Licensing Authority Solicitor may at the request of 
the Chairman of the Committee or Sub Committee advice the Committee or Sub 
Committee whilst it is considering its decision. 

 
7.5 Each party to the hearing present will then in turn provide information supporting or 

clarifying their representations. Each party can at this time seek to exercise their rights 
under Paragraph 6 above. 

 
7.6 At the conclusion of hearing, the Committee or Sub-Committee may advise all parties 

of details of representations they have received from parties not present and the 
weight they intend to attach to that evidence or representation. 

 
7.7 The Committee or Sub-Committee will disregard any information given by a party or 

any other person to whom permission to appear at the hearing has been given which 
is not relevant to ; 

 
a) their application, representation or notice or in the case of another person, the 

application, representation or notice of the party requesting their appearance, 
and 

b) the promotion of the Licensing Objectives 
 

 or in the case of a hearing to consider a notice given by a chief officer of police, the 
crime prevention objective only. 

 
7.8 At any time during the hearing the Committee or Sub Committee may exercise the 

right to exclude the public and the parties from the hearing where it considers that the 
public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of 
the hearing, taking place in public.   

 
8 Persons behaving in a disruptive manner 

8.1 The Committee or Sub-Committee may require any person attending the hearing who 
in their opinion is behaving in a disruptive manner to leave the hearing and may: 

 

Page 10



 - 5 - 

a) refuse to permit that person to return, or 
b) permit them to return only on such conditions as the Committee or Sub-

Committee may specify 
 
 but such a person may, before the end of the hearing, submit to the authority in writing 

any information, which they would have been entitled to give orally had they not been 
required to leave.  

 
9.        Adjournment of Hearing 

9.1 The Committee or Sub-Committee may adjourn a hearing to a specified date or 
arrange for the hearing to be held on specified additional dates where it considers this 
necessary to consider any representations or notice made by a party. 

 
9.2 It will not adjourn a hearing in such a way to create an effect on the requirements of 

granting or rejecting an application under Schedule 8 of the Act or a review under 
Section 167 of the Act. 

 
10 Determinations 

10.1 The Committee or Sub-Committee will make its determination at the conclusion of the 
hearing but in restricted circumstances may make a determination within a period of 5 
working days of the last day of the hearing. 

 
11 Notice of Determination 

11.1 The Clerk to the Committee or Sub-Committee will issue a notice of determination 
forthwith to all parties. 

 
12 Record of Proceedings 

      The Clerk to the Committee will provide for a record of the hearing to be taken in a 
permanent and intelligible form and kept for 6 years from the date of determination. 

SCHEDULE 1 

Column 1  Column 2  

Provision under which hearing is 
held.  

Period of time within which hearing must be 
commenced.  

1.  Section 18(3)(a) 
(determination of application 
for premises licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 17(5)(c).  

2.  Section 31(3)(a) 
(determination of application 
for a provisional statement).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 17(5)(c) by virtue of 
section 30.  

3.  Section 35(3)(a) 
(determination of application to 
vary premises licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 17(5)(c) by virtue of 
section 34(5).  

4.  Section 39(3)(a) 
(determination of application to 
vary premises licence to 
specify individual as premises 
supervisor).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period within which a chief officer of police may 
give notice under section 37(5).  

5.  Section 44(5)(a) 
(determination of application 
for transfer of premises 
licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period within which a chief officer of police may 
give notice under section 42(6).  

Page 11



 - 6 - 

6.  Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation 
of interim authority notice 
following police objection).  

5 working days beginning with the day after the end of 
the period within which a chief officer of police may 
give notice under section 48(2).  

7.  Section 52(2) (determination of 
application for review of 
premises licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 51(3)(c).  

8.  Section 72(3)(a) 
(determination of application 
for club premises certificate).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 71(6)(c).  

Column 1  Column 2  

Provision under which hearing is 
held.  

Period of time within which hearing must be 
commenced.  

9.  Section 85(3) (determination of 
application to vary club 
premises certificate).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 71(6)(c) by virtue of 
section 84(4).  

10.  Section 88(2) (determination of 
application for review of club 
premises certificate).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period during which representations may be 
made as prescribed under section 87(3)(c).  

11.  Section 105(2)(a) (counter 
notice following police 
objection to temporary event 
notice).  

7 working days beginning with the day after the end of 
the period within which a chief officer of police may 
give a notice under section 104(2).  

12.  Section 120(7)(a) 
(determination of application 
for grant of personal licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period within which the chief officer of police 
may give a notice under section 120(5).  

13.  Section 121(6)(a) 
(determination of application 
for the renewal of personal 
licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period within which the chief officer of police 
may give a notice under section 121(3).  

14.  Section 124(4)(a) (convictions 
coming to light after grant or 
renewal of personal licence).  

20 working days beginning with the day after the end 
of the period within which the chief officer of police 
may give a notice under section 124(3).  

15.  Section 167(5)(a) (review of 
premises licence following 
closure order).  

10 working days beginning with the day after the day 
the relevant licensing authority receives the notice 
given under section 165(4).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 - 1 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider an application for the review of the 
premises licence relating to the Walmesley Arms, 26 Queen Street, Great Harwood, 
Lancashire, following the submission of an application under section 51 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”) by a resident (“the resident”). 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

2.1 That the Committee consider the application to review the premises licence for the 
Walmesley Arms, 26 Queen Street, Great Harwood made by the resident, and any 
submissions made by the premises licence holder. 

 
3. INFORMATION  
 

3.1 Application for the conversion of the Justices’ On-Licence to the premises licence in 
relation to the Walmesley Arms was received on 3rd August 2005, together with 
application to vary the premises licence simultaneously. 

  

3.2 The premises licence on conversion and variation was granted on 1st September, 
2005 and the premises licence came into effect on 24 November, 2005.   

 
3.3 There were a number of applications for transfer of the Premises Licence holder 

and Designated Premises Supervisor between 2006 and 2013 culminating on 29th 
March 2012 with the transfer of the premise licence into the name of John Yeoman 
and on 16th October, 2013 an application to vary the Designated Premises 
Supervisor into the name of John Yeoman was also granted.  

 

3.4 The Walmesley Arms is situated on Queen Street, a busy main high street with a 
mixture of residential and commercial properties and is owned by Star Pubs and 
Bars Ltd. The premises benefits from the following licensable activities:- 

 

 Performance of live music  

 Playing of recorded music  

 Late Night Refreshment and  

 the Supply of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises.  
 
A copy of the current licence is attached at Appendix 1 and the street map location 
at Appendix 1A. 

TITLE:      APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE UNDER 
SECTION 53C OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003  

 
 

TO:-  LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
DATE:  6THh MARCH,  2017  
 
AT:  QUEEN ELIZABETH ROOM SCAITCLIFFE HOUSE 
             
BY:  LICENSING MANAGER ON BEHALF OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

(LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES) (EXT 2146)     

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4.



 - 2 - 

3.5 On 4th January, 2017 an application for the review of the premises licence pursuant 
to section 51 of the Act was received from a resident.  The ground for the review is 
that the licensing objectives relating to the prevention of crime and disorder and 
public nuisance have not been promoted at the premises as evidenced by the 
number of incidents recorded against the premises. A copy of the review application 
is attached at Appendix 2. 

 
3.6 The first incident  report recorded on file indicates  that  on 28th July, 2013 the 

Lancashire Constabulary were contacted to report loud music being played from 
2pm in the afternoon to the time of the report  7:03pm. An officer attended but there 
was no further action recorded.  

 

3.7      On the 12th August, 2013 an application for a minor variation was received to 
remove the embedded conditions and to alter the plan.   However, an objection to 
the variation was received from a member of the public in relation to the bar in the 
beer garden and the closing times. It was agreed therefore, through mediation, that 
the outside bar must close by 11pm Monday-Sunday and that there must no entry 
to and from the pub using the side yard door and that all patrons must enter and 
leave by the front entrance.   

 

3.8 Between 2013 and May 2016, the Licensing Section received a large number of 
Ten’s applications to extend the closing times mainly to 4:30am resulting in an 
application to vary the premises licence on 6th January, 2014.  Six objections to the 
variation were received of which three were timed out having been sent after the 
deadline for representations.  Of the valid objections, one was from a Councillor 
representing 12 residents.   In addition, on 10th January, 2014 Planning forwarded 
an email to the Licensing Section raising concerns about the smoking shelter and 
outside bar. (Appendix 3 refers)  

 
3.9 A hearing was set for 3rd March, 2014 and on 23rd January, 2014 Mr Yeoman 

agreed to the proposed conditions of licence with the Police. ( Appendix 4 refers) 
The Licensing Sub-Committee resolved that the application as amended by 
conditions agreed by the applicant, Lancashire Constabulary and Hyndburn Council 
Environmental Health be granted. 

 
3.10 On 9th May, 2016 a further application to vary the premises licence was received. 

The following amendments were requested:- 
 

Type From To  Indoor/outdoor  

Live music 12noon – midnight  
Monday - Sunday 

10:00am – 02:00am 
Monday – Sunday 

Both 

Recorded music 10:00am -2:30am 
Monday - Sunday 

10:00am – 04:am 
Monday - Sunday 

Indoors 

Late night 
refreshment 

11:00pm – *11:30pm 
 Monday - Sunday  

11:00pm – 04:00am 
Monday - Sunday 

Both 
 

Supply of alcohol 
 

10:00am – 2:00am 
Monday – Sunday 
 
Bar in beer garden 
Monday- Thursday 
10:00am – 23:00 
Friday – Sunday  
10:00- Midnight 

10:00am- 04:00am 
Monday – Sunday 
 
Bar in beer garden 
 
Hours unchanged 

Both 

Hours of opening  10:00am – 2:30am 08:00am – 4:30am  

Page 14



 - 3 - 

*Late Night Refreshment times correspond with the original times applied for 
under the conversion process in 2005.   
 

3.11 The Licensing Section received four objections to the variation including the 
Lancashire Constabulary and Environmental Health which were subsequently 
withdrawn when the premises licence holder Mr Yeoman, via his solicitors, made 
assurances that a number of steps had been put into place to prevent noise 
nuisance and to carry out a risk assessment each night he was open to consider 
the need for door staff. This new and agreed condition was included on the 
amended conditions of licence at Annex 2 of the premises licence (top of page 8 
of Appendix 1). A letter was sent to Mr Yeoman asking for evidence of the risk 
assessments on 25th January, 2017  (Appendix 4a refers). No information was 
received by the letter’s deadline. The Lancashire Constabulary were also asked to 
confirm that they had visited the premises but responded that owing to the huge 
number of premises the Police Sargent had to cover, he was unable to visit and 
check any of the risk assessments.    

 
3.12 The variation to hours for the Walmesley Arms was subsequently granted on 22nd 

June, 2016.  
 
3.13 Between 20th June 2016 – 15th January, 2017 further noise nuisance and crime and 

disorder complaints were received and as a result  of monitoring and a visit  by the 
Council’s Environmental Health Division two noise abatement notices were served 
on the Premises Licence  holder,  Mr John Yeoman, dated 11th November, 2016.  
One for playing excessively loud amplified music at the Walmesley reference No:-
004358 and the other for excessively raised voices at the Walmesley reference No:-
004359. (Appendix 5 & 6 refers)  The monitoring by the Council’s Environmental 
Health Division is still on-going.  

 
3.14 On the 1st February, 2017 the Licensing Section received an email from Mr 

Yeoman’s solicitor requesting an adjournment on the grounds that he had booked a 
holiday in November last and would not be able to attend on 13th February, 2016. 
His solicitor also confirmed that she was not available herself on that date. 
(Appendix 6a refers)   

 
3.15 On Sunday 5th February there were further reports of fighting outside the 

Walmesley Arms. The Lancashire Constabulary were asked to comment on this  
incident and responded by email on 6th February 2017 as follows:- 

 
Incident LC-20170205-0190 refers 

 
Police were called to outside the premises at 3.02am on Sunday 5th February 2017  to 
reports of 20/30 fighting outside on the main road with two staff members trying to break it 
up. CCTV picked out a large group but couldn’t pick out what exactly was going on. Officers 
got to the scene within 6 minutes and there was nothing going on and the pub was shut. 
The incident was resulted has a third part report and no offences disclosed. 

 

4.0 Additional information 
 

4.1 The Licensing Section has received three letters of support for the existing 
premises licence. (Appendix 7, 8 & 9 refers). 

 

Page 15



 - 4 - 

4.2 Mr Yeoman had sought support from social media resulting in resident responses 
which were deemed relevant to the review. Facebook excerpts are attached at 
Appendix 10 

 
4.3 The Fire and Rescue Services raised concerns in relation to recent visits in a letter 

dated 30th January, 2017.  (Appendix 10a refers) 
 
5.0 Advertisement 
 
5.1 The Licensing Authority advertised the application for review of the premises 

licence at the Scaitcliffe House, Town Hall, on the Council’s website and on the 
premises itself in accordance with The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and 
Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005.  

 
5.2 Responsible Authorities and other persons were invited to make representations in 

respect of the application for the review of the premises licence by 31st January, 
2017.  

 
5.3 A total of five representations have been received from three residents, (Appendix 

11, 12 & 13 refers) the Lancashire Constabulary and the Council’s Environmental 
Health Protection, Regeneration & Housing Division (Appendix 14 & 15 refers). 

 
6. Implications 
 
6.1 The Act at section 52(2) and (3) states that, before determining the application, the 

licensing authority must hold a hearing to consider it and any relevant 
representations.  It must, having regard to the application and any relevant 
representations, take such steps mentioned in section 52 (4) (if any) as it considers 
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
6.2 The steps referred to in paragraph 6.1 above are:- 
 
 a) to modify the conditions of the licence; 
 
 b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 
  
 c) to remove the designated premises supervisor  
 
 d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
 

e) to revoke the licence;  
 
and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are  modified if any of them is 
altered or omitted or any new condition is added. 

 
6.3 Where the licensing authority takes a step mentioned at a) or b) in paragraph 5.2 

above in relation to the review, it may provide that the modification or exclusion is to 
have effect for only such period (not exceeding three months) as it may specify. 

 
6.4 Any party to the hearing has the right of appeal to Lancashire Magistrates’ Court 

following the determination of the review under section 52 of the Act. 
 

 

Page 16



 - 5 - 

For further information on the details of this report, please contact: 
Mr. Katherine Parry, Licensing Manager, Hyndburn Borough Council. Tel 01254 388111 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Representation made by a responsible Authority in support of an application 

for the review of an existing Premises Licence 

 

Responsible Authority making representation 

Lancashire Police 

PS Jason Middleton 

01254 353625 

 

Name of Applicant who requested a review of this licence 

Christine Roberts 

 

Premises Details 

The Walmesley Arms,  

Queen Street, 

Great Harwood. 

 

Details of your representation in support of the review application  

This supporting representation is brought on behalf of the Chief Constable of Lancashire 

Constabulary.   

The issues are operational practises that would appear to undermine the Prevention of Crime & 

Disorder licensing objective and as a result the Walmesley Arms is causing us some concerns. 

The information provided by the applicant in the application is accepted by the Police even though 

we are aware that a number of the incidents highlighted were not brought to the attention of the 

Police at the time but instead brought to the attention of the local Environmental Health. 

The main issue for the Police relates to the control and management of the front of the premises 

particularly at the busy times late at night with examples of this from the past 6 months detailed 

below.  

 

09/07/2016 @ 01:30 – Police visit and it was noticed a number of patrons leaving the premises with 

glasses of what appeared to be alcohol and walking up Queen Street towards other licensed 

premises. 

Page 85



13/08/2016 @ 00:57 – LC-20160813-0063 relates to reports of a fight inside and outside the pub. 

11/09/2016 @ 00:55 – Police licensing visit with the premises extremely busy with patrons outside 

and inside. 

01/10/2016 @ 00:50 – People outside the front of the premises including one male with a glass in 

his hand. 

02/10/2016 @ 00:35 – Police licensing visit and 15-20 people were outside the premises with 5 of 

those drinking from glasses. 

02/10/2016 @ 01:35 – LC-20161002-0134 relates to disorder involving bottles being used as 

weapons with the incident starting in the beer garden and then escalating and ending up continuing 

outside on Queen Street.  

22/10/2016 @ 01:30 – Police licensing visit with about 10 people out on the front pavement 

including one drinking out of a glass. 

15/01/2017 @ 02:30 – Police licensing visit with 30 + people drinking outside on the street due to 

DPS closing beer garden for no apparent reason. 

 

** UPDATED INCIDENTS OF CONCERN UP TILL 01/03/2017 ** 

05/02/2017 @ 03:02 – Reports of 20/30 fighting outside the premises on the main road. CCTV 

reports something going on. No fighting on police arrival but groups still present. Premises closed 

early. 

19/02/2017 @ 01:29 - Premises call police to assist in the removal of a male who was refusing to 

leave. Refusing to go and states he will smash the pub up if they try and remove him. 

More details of the above can be provided if required. 

The main Police concern is that there appears to be no control or management of patrons at the 

front of the premises particularly at the weekend after midnight which is resulting in alcohol related 

anti-social behaviour, on-street drinking and also noise issues all of which undermine the licensing 

objectives. It’s the Police view that this lack of control may be a link to the issues that have been 

highlighted by applicant in her application and therefore this representation is relevant and should 

be considered at any hearing. 

Submitted for your consideration. 

 

Jason Middleton 

Licensing Sergeant 

East Division – Lancashire Police 

Page 86


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of the Last Meeting
	3. Licensing Hearing Procedure
	4. Licensing Act 2003 Determination Hearing  -  The Walmsley Arms, 26 Queen Street, Great Harwood
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1a
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 4a
	Appendices 5 and 6
	Appendix 6a
	Appendix 7
	Appendices 8, 9 and 10
	Appendix 10a
	Appendix 11
	Appendices 12 and 13
	Appendix 14
	Appendix 15
	Supplementary Information - Planning Enforcement History
	Additional Information  -  Police Representation


